

ANNUAL REPORT





AFFILIATIONS

Victorian Sub-District Cricket Association South East Cricket Association

To be presented to the Members at the Annual General Meeting at the McKinnon Hotel on Friday 22 July, 2016

NOTICE

The Sixty-Ninth Annual General Meeting of the Ormond Cricket Club Inc. will be held at McKinnon Hotel on Friday 22nd July 2016, commencing at 6.30 p.m.

Nominations for the election of the Office Bearers must be forwarded to the Secretary by 5pm on the 15th July 2016, duly signed by the Proposer and Seconder and endorsed by the Nominee.

BUSINESS

- 1. Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting held on 24th July 2015.
- 2. Presentation of the Annual Report.
- 3. Adoption of the Statement of Income and Expenditure.
- 4. Election of Office Bearers.
- 5. General Business.



LIFE MEMBERS

• E.E. Gunn †	• G.V. Corbett †	• H. Ladson †	• W. Park †
• W. Dynon †	• W.A.L. Rowse †	• L. Sykes †	• E.J. Barwick †
• G. Macpherson +	• Mrs. I. Rowse †	• L.G. Laver †	• K. Donald †
• J.L. Robertson †	• R.J. Zimmer †	• G. Lees	• R.W. Chapman †
• C.P. Hyland	• D.L. Chisholm	• J.G. Craig	• L.M. Patterson
• E.J. Plant †	• A.W. Doble	• C.A. Rogers +	• K. Saddington †
• I.W. Shields	• M.V. Carracher	• Mrs. B. Craig	• J. Craig (Snr) †
• R. Sommerville	• Mrs. L.J. Patterson	• P.J.E. Scott	• G. Cowen
• R. Oaten	• M. Williams	• G Wilcox	• I Hewett
• R Simon	• K Greenway	• M Pedersen	• S Ambler
• A Gough			



2016 Life Member Steve Ambler at the President's Lunch.

OFFICE BEARERS 2015/2016

PATRON

John Craig

PRESIDENT

Brian Ambler

TREASURER

Liam Mulcahy

SECRETARY

Mathew Cousins

GENERAL COMMITTEE

John Craig, Ian Shields, Ross Singleton, Sean Clark, Pat Camm, Adam Reed, John Crofts, Mat Wood

JUNIOR CO-ORDINATOR

Pat Camm

J. G. CRAIG SHIELD TEAM COACH

Michael Cove

E.E. GUNN RESERVE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIVE

John Craig

GROUND MANAGEMENT

John Craig

DELEGATES

VSDCA: Mathew Cousins and Sean Clark SECA: Pat Camm

HONORARY AUDITOR

R.J. Everett

GENERAL REPORT 2015/16

I submit for your approval at the 69th Annual General Meeting of the Ormond Cricket Club, the Annual Report and Statement of Income and Expenditure for season 2015/2016.

Season 2015/2016 commenced with the club in the envious position of being the reigning premier in the 1st XI for the first time in 40 years. Added to the enthusiasm was the recruitment from Premier cricket of Matthew Harrison from Geelong Cricket Club, Neil Schlittler from Prahran Cricket Club and wicketkeeper/batsmen Adam Cragg and Alex Nash from the UK. Our goal of going back to back in season 2015/2016 was looking well within reach.

Also the club was successful in re-introducing the 5th XI, due to the overwhelming list of senior players available, which resulted in the team playing their home games on the main oval at EE Gunn on Sundays in the VTCA Sunday One Day South D1 competition.

The Executive Committee also saw the addition of club sponsor Mat Wood in the role as Assistant Junior Coordinator to help Pat Camm.

Unfortunately, during the pre-season we said good bye to premiership players in Rohan Wight and Chris Appleton. Thank you to both players for their significant contributions to the Ormond Cricket Club. They will both be missed, but they will always be remembered as premiership players and are always welcome at the club.

Once again, player attendance throughout the pre-season training sessions was good and the mood around the club was very positive leading into Round 1 with the 1st and 2nd XI's taking on Sunshine, while the 3rd and 4th XI's were playing Noble Park and the 5th XI had drawn to play Mentone.

Also the Executive decided that after a lapse of several years it was time to recognise those people who have made very significant and valuable contributions to the Ormond Cricket Club and on the eve of Round 1 the following persons were awarded Life Membership:

- Graeme Wilcox
- Ian Hewett
- Richard Simon
- Kelvin Greenway
- Mike Pedersen (Posthumous)
- Stephen Ambler
- Andrew Gough



And what a great Round 1 it was, with the club winning 5 from 5 in the seniors and all our junior sides starting off with either wins or performing well.

GENERAL REPORT 2015/16 (Continued)

The 1st XI then went on to win their first 5 games with magnificent wins in Round 2 against Caulfield at Caulfield, notching up our first win against the 'old enemy' in 13 seasons and then winning the Round 3 Grand Final replay against Oakleigh. Things were starting to look very positive.

Then, all of a sudden, the 1st XI had a slump winning only 3 of their next 8 games and they had to win the last round to make the finals, which they did beating Werribee to earn the right to play our 2015/16 grand final opponent in Oakleigh in a cut throat Qualifying Final.

Unfortunately the team was unable to achieve the back to back dream, as we were bundled out in the final overs of our innings against Oakleigh then we were unable to break a stubborn 9th wicket partnership which got them across the line with only a few overs to spare. Oakleigh then advanced through and ultimately had premiership success.

Unfortunately it was a similar story in the juniors with our Under 16A and Under 16B teams making their respective Grand Finals but they were unable to bring home premiership success.

The individual highlights across the club's senior and junior XI's for the season will be covered in more detail in the captain's and team managers' reports, but now I would like to thank all those responsible for making season 2015/2016 happen including:

- President Brian Ambler, who again did a magnificent job in running the club and for making very sound and important decisions to continue the Ormond Cricket Club goal of being a great, inclusive and respected sporting club within our local community.
- Coach Dale Christie, for his continued dedication and persistence to implement a plan of being a successful and powerhouse VSDCA club by; recruiting quality players to the club, constantly making/winning finals and achieving premiership success across all grades.
- Pat Camm, for again doing an outstanding job in the important role of Junior Coordinator. I previously said that Richard Simon was the *"Emperor of Ormond"* but Pat I think you have well and truly taken that title now!
- 1st XI Captain James Wild for again having another excellent season with both the bat and ball. This resulted in him winning the Club Championship for the third consecutive year and be rewarded for this success with selection as Captain of the VSDCA Team of the Year. Great stuff again Wildy!
- Club Patron John Craig who continues his important role of attending to the "little things" that need to be done around the club. Craigy, your rolling of the wicket on the main ground puts many international curators to shame!
- Treasurer Liam Mulcahy, who continues to do an excellent job in controlling and keeping a close watch on the club's financial status.
- Executive Committee member Sean Clark for his excellent work in again managing the club's website and player/supporter communication outlets.
- John Crofts for continuing his important work as Club Liaison officer with Glen Eira Council. Your work in this role has again been excellent.
- Michael Cove who completed his second year as coach of our Under 15 J. G. Craig Competition team. This season he was well supported by Assistant Coach, Will Robertshaw and Team Manager, Jonty Sharman-Smith.
- Ian Shields for cooking and serving up excellent, value for money meals on Thursday nights after training.

GENERAL REPORT 2015/16 (Continued)

- Steve Ambler, who again performed the roles of 1st XI Team Manager/Scorer and the club's "MasterChef Assistant" to Ian on a Thursday night.
- Bar Manager, Russell Oaten, who the club can always count on when things need to done.
- Franny Oaten for her valued preparation and organisation of the excellent afternoon teas on match days.
- Mick Cahalane and Rod Chisholm for their professionalism in carrying out their duties as Club Umpires for the 3rd and 4th XI home games when available.
- Fran Riley for her hours of work to collate and prepare this Annual Report.
- All the members of the Executive Committee.

A very big thank you again to all the great supporters of our club, especially those ever reliable in, Colin and Lynne Geldart, Richard and Pamela Simon, Geoff Cowen, Al Gordon, Jennifer Pearson, Gary McCambley, Terry Lofts, Beryl Craig, Mike and Lyn Patterson, Trish Shields, Rod Sharman-Smith, Mat and Kristen Wood, Tamara Andrews, Greg Paine, Dan Moon, Paul Sellenger, Von Singleton, Steve and Jean Wild and Andrew Gough along with the Past Players Group, who all do important and valuable behind-the-scenes work for the club.

Thanks to all the magnificent sponsors of the Ormond Cricket Club, being Omegapharm, Bendigo Bank Ormond-McKinnon, New Balance, The McKinnon Hotel, Buxton Real Estate, Ian Hewett Engineering Pty Ltd, The Door Store, Ormond Physiotherapy, The Servery, P J Camm & Associates, Sportsmart, AUA Urology, Hunter Consulting and Remezzo.

The Ormond Cricket Club again recognises and thanks the valuable support shown by Jack Sheehan, Ken Hilton and the entire VSDCA Executive as well as VSDCA sponsors Kookaburra, Bendigo Bank - East Malvern, Somersby, Schweppes Australia, BLK, Knights Sports, Shine Lawyers, Legends & Heroes, Cricketers Arms and Melbourne Stars for their valuable support of VSDCA cricket.

The Ormond Cricket Club is also grateful to the support shown by Linda Smith, Belinda Griffiths and the Parks & Recreation team at City of Glen Eira to allow us to play and use the excellent facilities available to us at EE Gunn Reserve.

As season 2016/2017 approaches there are several challenges in front of us such as the Level Crossing Removal Project and the continuing discussions of the proposed future of Turf Cricket in Metropolitan Melbourne, which we must face with a 'head down and bum up' attitude and get on with the job of the Ormond Cricket Club being a powerhouse again in the VSDCA.

To the Ormond family whether as a senior/junior player, coaching panel, supporter, past player, parent or committee member I say we must embrace this attitude and together we will overcome these obstacles.

I say, YES WE CAN!

Mathew Cousins SECRETARY

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

After winning our first premiership in 40 years, planning for the season 2015/16 commenced within weeks. The off-season is an important time for planning and setting up for a new season and future seasons.

Our Strategic Plan for the next three years was completed, a new sponsors document also completed and we recruited Mathew Harrison from Geelong, Neil Schlittler from Prahran and Adam Cragg a wicket keeper and top order bat from the UK confirmed he would be joining us. The club was thrilled to have such quality people and cricketers join the Ormond Cricket Club.

The winter season saw the cricket nets working overtime with our junior coordinator, Pat Camm spending long hours coaching and developing our juniors. His tireless work paid off with several new players joining the Club. We commenced the season with 9 junior teams plus excellent numbers at our grass roots Milo and T20 Blast programs.

The season opened with the first eleven unfurling the 2014/15 premiership flag against Sunshine and a lunch to celebrate the premiership and the induction of seven new Life Members. The club was thrilled to induct Steve Ambler, Andrew Gough, Kel Greenway, Ian Hewett, the late Michael Pederson, Richard Simon and Graeme Wilcox as Life Members of the Ormond Cricket Club. All of our inductees have made significant contributions to the club both on and off the field and having such quality people is what makes a club survive and succeed.



Beryl Craig and club legend John Craig can't wait any longer for President Brian Ambler to have the flag ready to be hoisted. It was 40 years since the last flag had been won. John played in 6 first eleven premierships

First Eleven captain James Wild accepting the Laver/ Little trophy from Caulfield captain Ricky Damiano for the first time in 10 years.



First eleven players from Ormond and Sunshine were joined by VSDCA executive members Jack Sheahan, Phil O'Mara and Ken Hilton



Due to the large number of players, we entered a fifth eleven in the VTCA, playing one-day games on a Sunday on the main oval. This allowed opportunities for fathers and sons to play together and for others to play with their mates.

PRESIDENT'S REPORT (Continued)

The season started strongly and after five rounds, the first XI were undefeated on top and we were showing improvement in all elevens from the previous year. A season highlight occurred against Moorabbin in round 5 when Matthew Harrison (156) and James Wild (120) put on 275 which was a club record partnership and third highest in the VSDCA.

Matthew Harrison leaving the ground after his brilliant 156 Captain James Wild after his excellent 120 Grant Chessari and Neil Schlittler looking

after the score board.







Guess who were the two batsmen out!

The juniors were winning games with the under 16 teams dominating the competition. Unfortunately from round six onwards, we started to drop games and from being in a position for all senior teams to play finals we fell away in the second half of the season with only the first eleven making the finals. The under 16As and Bs went into the finals with only one loss between them in 20 games. A replay of the grand final against Oakleigh was set up in the first final and after being in a dominant position twice with both the bat and ball, the result was reversed and our season over. The following weekend didn't get any better with both under 16 teams losing their grand finals after going in as favourites.

We must take the disappointing finals results as an opportunity to learn and become a better and stronger club. Our junior program is incredibly healthy and we are seeing the development of young players coming through with juniors Ben Paine, Lachlan McCambley, Michail Schneider, Scott Gordon and Miles Sellenger all playing first eleven cricket this season. Another former junior playing first eleven and performing well was Nick Oaten, who showed his potential with an outstanding man of the match award against Werribee to win the game and get us into the finals.

19 year old Nick Oaten after making a brilliant 50 off 32 balls and then taking 3/19 to win the last game against third placed Werribee to make finals.

To run a club like ours takes a lot of work and I wish to thank the following people for their wonderful support.

- All captains, coaches and team managers for taking on a position of responsibility within the club and getting 14 teams out on the park each weekend.
- All junior parents for getting your boys to training, match days and supporting club functions.
- Dale Christie for his role as club coach and continually moving the club forward. Chippa is heading into his 5th season as coach.
- Pat Camm for winning the Ted Plant award for the most outstanding contribution to the club in season 2015/16



PRESIDENT'S REPORT (Continued)

- Russell and Franny Oaten for winning the Presidents Award, the afternoon teas, running the bar and all you do for the club.
- We are very fortunate to have some great people at Ormond and I wish to thank Geoff Cowen for the work he does as practice captain and club historian.
- James Wild for running the reverse draw and all the support he provides around the club and leading the first eleven.
- Steve Ambler for his work as first eleven-team manager, assisting behind the bar and preparing meals on Thursday nights.
- Ian Hewitt for helping our English players and a number of our younger cricketers with work through his Racking Company.
- Paul Sellenger for producing all the player sponsors and posters for functions.
- Al Gordon for again running the Milo Program (after retiring) and scoring for the second eleven.
- Aedan Gordon and Kyle Edwards for assisting Al with the Milo In2Cricket Program on Saturday mornings.
- Neil Schlittler for being a great MC at our Talking Cricket with guests David Hussey and Rob Quiney
- Lyne and Colin Geldart for providing accommodation for Adam Cragg and his partner Jen Pearson and their wonderful support.
- Richard and Pamela Simon for their ongoing support and wonderful enthusiasm.
- Steve and Jean Wild and Robert Morrey for their great support at every game.
- Mick Cove, Will Robershaw and Jonty Sharman-Smith for running our Under 15 J G Craig team.
- Lyn Patterson for providing a great lunch for the country week teams.
- Beryl Craig for being our number one supporter.
- Andrew Gough for his work with the past players and match reports
- Club umpires Rod Chisholm and Mick Cahalane.
- Fran Riley for the newsletter and annual report.

To our committee thank you for all you do.

- Ian Shields for team dinners and his key role as vice-president.
- Mathew Wood for his work with the juniors, Pink Stumps Day and his continued support as major sponsor through his company Omegapharm
- John Craig for the rolling of the wickets and regular reminders.
- John Crofts for his work on the strategic plan and ongoing support.
- Sean Clark for being a club delegate and looking after the website,
- Mathew Cousins for being a delegate and another year as secretary.
- Liam Mulchay for being treasurer and strategic thinker.
- Adam Reed for being MC at the season launch and presentation night.
- Ross Singleton for sponsorship and doing many small things that are so important.

PRESIDENT'S REPORT (Continued)

Congratulations to the following players

- James Wild for winning a third straight club championship and being selected as Captain of the VSDCA team of the year.
- Rod Bird for his selection in the VSDCA team of the year.
- Miles Sellenger for being selected in the Victorian under 15 team and winning the Butch Rogers award again for the best junior playing senior cricket.
- Ben Paine Under 16 SECA Beitzel Shield Team Captain
- Miles Sellenger (Captain) Under 14 South East Breakers Team (Premiers)
- Zac Sleeman Under 14 South East Breakers Team (Premiers)
- Bailey Moon Under 14 South East Breakers Team (Premiers)
- Spencer Wood (Captain) Under 14 Allen Shield Green Team
- Charlie Ward Under 12 Josh Browne Plate (Premiers)
- Lewis Sellenger Under 12 Mitchell Shield (Premiers)

We are very fortunate to have fantastic sponsors and I encourage all of our club members to support the following businesses

Bendigo Bank- Ormond McKinnon contact Annalise Hewitt	Omegapharm – Junior Sponsor -Mathew and Kristen Wood
McKinnon Hotel – Cameron Stewart	Buxton Bentleigh – Andrew Chisholm
Remezzo's Ormond – Charlie	The Door Store – Richard Barron
Ian Hewitt Engineering – Ian Hewett	New Balance – Russell Oaten
Sportsmart – Gerrard Woods	The Servery - RJ
Australian Urology – Daniel Moon	Hunter Consulting – John Crofts
PJ Camm and Associates – Pat Camm	Ormond Physiotherapy

Thank you to Linda Smith and Belinda Griffiths at the City of Glen Eira for providing a terrific facility to play cricket at.

Thank you to the VSDCA, Jack Sheahan, Phil O'Mara and Ken Hilton for running a wonderful cricket association.

Finally to all our volunteers who made a contribution to our club during the year.

In conclusion my highlight of the year was to see the continuous integration of our juniors into the club both on and off the field. The support at the final against Oakleigh with so many juniors watching and the attendance of so many junior parents at the Trivia night was fantastic.

This year our junior presentation night was split into two time slots to cater for so many people. The under 12's were 6 -7, under 14's and 16's were 7-8 with the social room full for both groups. The future is looking bright.

Our focus is to continually improve in all areas as a club.

Our vision is simple "To create a great environment in which to play cricket".



Bran Ambler PRESIDENT



COACH'S REPORT 2015/16

Statistically Speaking

Club Championship = 19th (1 place higher than 2014/15)

1stXI – dropped 3 places – knocked out in Qualifying Final 2ndXI – moved up 1 place 3rdXI – moved up 3 places 4thXI – dropped 4 places 5thXI – debuted in 6th

We won 23 games of cricket out of 67 games. (34%); as compared to 40% last season.

We only had 3 batsmen make more than 200 runs in the 1stXI, yet we only used 18 players (2 less than last season). This tells me we had fewer players putting pressure on batting spots, we had less players contributing in lower grades putting their hand up to play higher.

We used 29 players in the 2ndXI this season to try and find a talent to make the next level.

We had 4 1stXI debutants through the lower grades in Miles Sellenger, Lachy McCambley, Ben Paine, and Alex Nash. We got more 1stXI games into Scott Gordon, Mikki Schneider, and Nick Oaten – all under 21 year olds.

We only had 2 centuries this season (6 last season), and had 23 fifties (25 last season).

We only had 7 players take 15 or more wickets, compared to 11 last season.

Our Goal was to win the 1stXI Premiership and get another team into Finals – we did not achieve our goal.

We used 89 players across our 5 teams this season, that's a lot of players, that's a big Club.

Psychologically Wanting

While its easy from the outside to say Ormond failed this season, and went nowhere, I believe the Club as a whole improved on last season on field, mainly due to more games into our Under 20's group who became more experienced and more competitive, and will see signs of this more next season, but.....we lacked something we had a lot of last season...

DESIRE, PASSION, HUNGER, WANT, COMMITMENT

As a Club we did not close out games, we did not have big partnerships, we did not rally when it got hard, we did not see out 80 overs, we did not bowl sides out, we did drop catches, we did get out softly, we did misfield, we did get run out, we did have attendances at training drop off, we did focus on me rather than the team, we did not attend social functions, we did not come back to the Club after games, we did not do the extra work, we did not prepare well, and we did not seem to care.

Quite simply the approach into next season, and the focus of all pre-season will be to get all of that back. To get us bonding and playing as a Team for the Club. Next season will see another year and another 10 or so senior games into our Under 20s group – I expect that group to now start to show us signs of the above – to show us excitement, and passion and loving to win games of cricket. Loving each other's company and enjoying the success of yourself and each other....being part of the Club and absorbing it, not being a bystander. Enjoyment is infectious, make it a habit.

COACH'S REPORT 2015/16 (Continued)

The Club has 5 teams, has over 90 players on its books, has a successful Junior set up that is growing, this is the time to show the competition that we are a powerful Club and move up the Club Championship and fight again for finals in all grades, sell out social functions and have a packed Clubhouse on Saturday nights.

.....it starts with you.

Thankyou!

Sarah and Leah for allowing me another year of cricket ... and giving me a few more games than expected.

Brian Ambler for setting the standard. He needs more committed help to assist him to achieve the high levels we are after – don't leave it to the same few every week.

The Committee for your tireless and often thankless work this season – afternoon teas, wicket preparation, administration, bar and kitchen, Thursday night dinners etc.

Geoff Cowan again for the time and effort into Practice Nets and Club History and fact finding.

Steve Ambler for another solid season on the books for the 1stXI, and to all others who dedicated their time to scoring in all grades.

Adam Cragg, Jennifer Pearson, and Alex Nash – absolutely fantastic overseas guests of ours this season. Tremendous on and off field, you've all made a new home in Ormond and life long friends – we hope to see you all again soon.

Pat Camm – for ensuring the future success of the Club. Pat has not only realised the goal, but now lives it – due to Pat's 24/7 dedication to the Club, we are seeing fantastic talent emerge from the juniors into seniors – having both U16 teams make the Grand Final is testament to that hard work.

The Captains – James Wild, Sean Clark, Alex Hill, Ian Hewitt, Will Hunter, a tough gig, especially with 4 new Captains, and a heap of changes each week. Credit to you all for your hard work and enthusiasm.

To Wildy and Harro – your first year as a coaching partnership, I'm sure you will both see the Club to glory.

To the under 17 group – and to their parents – thank you for being part of the senior Club and making the effort, hopefully you can all see where we want to be and you are a big part of that, I look forward to seeing you develop over pre-season and making contributions next season.

To the 89 players, supporters, and the wider Ormond Family, next season is as important a season as there has ever been. We have a real chance to push this Club into uncharted realms in terms of participation numbers, social functions, sponsorship, and Club on field success, in all grades.

Turn up, be a part of it, and enjoy the success!

"the starting point of all achievement is desire..." - Napoleon Hill

DALE CHRISTIE COACH

SENIORS REPORT 2015/16

The following is a brief summary of season 2015-16 for each of the four senior XIs:-

FIRST XI REPORT 2015/16

Season 2015/16 was mixed for the 1st XI. There were some brilliant wins, some horrendous losses and some games that could have gone either way. After scraping into the finals via a last round win, we were unfortunately knocked over by the eventual Premiers Oakleigh CC. A disappointing result considering our group's belief that we could, and should, go back-to-back.

The first round saw five changes from the winning Premiership side (not many times you will see that happen!). In came Neil Schlittler, Matt Harrison, Adam Cragg, Scott Gordon and Ben Paine. All five new comers were making their debut for the 1st XI or the club. We were able to bring in Ben Paine and Scott Gordon for their 1st XI debuts after a strong pre seasons. This was very pleasing considering both were under the age of 18. Gun recruit Neil Schlittler started the season off with a bang with scores of 95 and 87 at nearly run a ball. This had all other clubs shaking in their boots. Matt Harrison showed glimpses of his capabilities in the first couple of rounds and this culminated in a magnificent 156 against our local rivals Moorabbin. Adam Cragg dug us out of a whole against Oakleigh to send a statement to the comp. We couldn't have started the season any better after being 5-0 after the first five rounds.

We were brought back down to earth after a very disappointing loss to local rivals Elsternwick CC. To be perfectly honest, we played like cowboys and were found out big time. A close loss in the next two One Dayers has us searching for answers. A good bowling performance at Altona was let down by an incredibly embarrassing batting performance were we lost 9 for next to nothing in just over an hours play. A good first days win against Brighton on a sporting wicket got us back on the right track but this was undone by a loss to new comers Hoppers Crossing. So with the last two rounds to play, we knew we had to win both to make sure that we were in the final six. A great win in Round 12 verse our rivals Malvern CC was down to a classy innings by our Vice Captain Matt Harrison who showed his class again to get us over the line. We pushed for outright but couldn't knock over the stubborn batting line up of Malvern again.

Equation was that if we won the last round, we were guaranteed finals. Lose and we would have to rely on other results to scrape in.

So we ventured over the West Gate Freeway to battle against a very strong Werribee outfit. After winning the toss, we were soon in trouble with some quick wickets leading us into trouble. After getting to 6-70 with only 10 overs left, enter young Nick Oaten. Taking the game on as he so ever does, Nick played the best innings of his short career so far and walked off on the last ball after raising his bat for a well compiled 50 off 32 balls. This gave us a defendable target of 152. Nick was ably supported by our English keeper, Adam Cragg, who chipped in with 37 valuable runs.

With the season on the line, we ventured out with destiny in our own hands. A disciplined bowling effort restricted the strong Werribee batting line up to 118 all out. All bowlers did their job but the star man was Nick Oaten with 3-19 off 8.1 overs. Safe to say we all know who the Man of the Match was for this game! A great game by such an exciting young talent for OCC.

We were in the finals. A relief to say for the Coaching Staff after big expectations. We were drawn to play against Oakleigh CC, we fancied our chances and knew that Oakleigh definitely didn't want to play against us after beating them earlier in the season and of course, last year's Grand Final! We unfortunately couldn't take the chocolates over the weekend; we were undone by a brilliant 9th wicket partnership that was heartbreaking. We lost the weekend from 5pm both days after losing quick wickets trying to set a target on the Saturday. Cricket is a funny and cruel game!

FIRST XI REPORT 2015/16 (Continued)

Some of my personal highlights for the season:

- A number of youngsters getting a taste of 1st XI cricket. Scott Gordon, Ben Paine and Lachlan McCambley are all under 18 and have huge futures at OCC and beyond. Use the experience and make this motivation to be a regular 1st XI player for years to come.
- Mikki Schneider playing consistently in the last half of the season at the age of 17. A bright young cricketer who
 has a huge future at OCC. I hope you realise what it takes to be a consistent 1st XI player and drive you to
 believe and succeed in your ability.
- Miles Sellenger, the second youngest 1st XI player at OCC. A huge talent and young man who is willing to learn and develop his game. Did not look out of his depth while playing against men which was hugely impressive.
- Rod Bird consistently performing at a level that sees him succeed. The best fast bowler in the comp and will run through brick walls for his team. A pleasure to have in our side and nobody can match his passion and enthusiasm for cricket.
- Adam Cragg was a great overseas pro and fitted into our team like he has been around for ages. He kept the house down even though he had a busted finger all season. Brave effort mate and one that is greatly appreciated from all your teammates.
- Neil Schlittler's innings against Brighton on a very difficult wicket. Tore apart their attack and got us a win on the first day. Class above and had everyone ducking for cover at the Gunn! I think you may still have a bruise on your back from their overseas pro though!
- The partnership between Matt Harrison and myself vs Moorabbin. It was great to break the VSDCA's 3rd wicket partnership with a bloke that I have played so much cricket with over the years. Harro showed all his class after getting "filled in" early by the big crazy Pommie fast bowler. What a day it was.
- Schlitz and Craggy getting told off by the umpire for talking about sandwiches while the bowler was running in. It was a very boring day at Moorabbin that day.

A cricket season cannot be done without the tireless efforts that people do behind the scenes. A few Thank You mentions are in order:

- Senior Coach Dale Christie- Your efforts are phenomenal and the club is very lucky to have your services. Our endless selection discussions and theories on cricket are great. Thanks for your support.
- Assistant Coach and Vice-Captain Matt Harrison- Thank you for your help and words of wisdom over the season and I hope you enjoyed your first season at OCC. We saw a few glimpses of your class and I am sure that they will be on show again next season.
- Neil Schlittler- A great addition to the side and the club. I know all the youngsters of the club really looked up to you and listened when you passed on your words of wisdom. I have played a lot of cricket with you and it was great to finally get to boss you around for once! Haha.
- Matt Thomas- You know where you stand with Tank and he is a great leader and provides drive that all clubs require. All the best with your new role at Mazenod CC. They are very lucky to have a man of your commitment and passion. You will be sorely missed at Ormond.
- Our English Connection- Adam Cragg and his partner Jennifer Pearson. Fitted into our club like they have been here for years. A great couple who are hopefully back again next season. Alex Nash, the oldest/mature looking 21 year old I have ever seen. You brought the ladies back to OCC with your handsome looks. You are welcome back in a heartbeat.

FIRST XI REPORT 2015/16 (Continued)

- Steve Ambler- Thank you for everything that you do. Whether it is being our Team Manager, the best scorer in the comp, bar duties or Thursday Night dinners. The playing group are very thankful and you definitely make my job easier on match days!
- Geoff Cowen- For being there every net session, no matter what. A very thankless job and one that is incredibly important for the coaching group. Thank you for all the wonderful history facts about our great club.
- John Craig- For always being around and helping out with ground preparation. The playing group are very appreciative of endless hours sitting on the roller and preparing the great EE Gunn pitches.
- Pat Camm- What you do for this club, words cannot describe. The endless hours on the bowling machine, the weekends throughout the Winter, every day throughout the Summer. We are very lucky to have someone of your dedication and pride in the work that you do.
- Brian Ambler- Thank you for your support as President of our club. Your support of the coaching and playing group is greatly appreciated and you are doing all the great things this club deserves.
- Thursday Night Dinner Crew Such manly meals and at a bargain price. Shieldsy's corned beef is one that I always look forward to.
- Tea Ladies/Helpers- Best in the business and of course Shieldsy's scones, legendary! Is it just me that loves the party pies at room temperature?
- All the Partners/Wives/Better Halves- Thank you for allowing us to play the game we love. It takes up a lot of time and without your support, we would be a sulky lot!
- So that was the season. A funny one and hugely disappointing after the season before. But, we will live to fight another day. Bring on season 2016/2017!

James Wild CAPTAIN ORMOND CC 1ST XI.

SECOND XI REPORT 2015/16

What If? Unfortunately, this was a common statement mentioned after numerous 2nd XI games this season – more often than not when we were on the negative end of a result.

Over the course of the last 2 seasons, we as a 2nd XI group have struggled to dominate fixtures with the bat, and again this season, we were unfortunately unable to rectify this issue.

Statistically, the squad made only 61 more runs than the previous season, but unfortunately this was close to 500 runs less than a majority of the teams that finished in the top 6 in our division. Our bowling group again were able to make inroads into all batting line ups we were up against, with statistically the squad having a better season than last with both wickets taken (124) and runs conceded.

As they say in the classics, 'Catches win Matches', and this is where we really let ourselves down in Season 2015/16, where at crucial times catches were put down, which would cost the side runs, which in the end we were not able to chase or defend. This is a facet of our game that needs major work during pre-season for the entire club to be in a stronger position (on field) going forward.

Our end result of 4 wins for the season including a Round 1 outright victory over Sunshine, I don't believe is a true indication of where we are placed as a squad and club. Of the 9 losses, there were only 2 games where we can honestly say we were out played (Williamstown & Moorabbin), with the other 7 games all having those 'What If' moments.

The highlight personally for me this season was the Round 1 victory over Sunshine, with a side made up of 9 players under the age of 19, plus one twenty year old, and one 30+ captain (Average age of the side this round was 18 years). Yes, the opposition may not have been the strongest we faced this season, but the maturity and ruthless attitude of the young group shows that we do have a strong group coming through, we just need to keep having the right support structure around the lower grades to develop this talent into future 1st XI players.

Some team highlights of note:

- The Round 1 outright victory over Sunshine, with a young bowling group led by Nick Oaten and William Robertshaw, ably assisted by Miles Sellenger.
- The clinical all round performance in the victory over Melton in Round 4
- The fighting victory over an experienced Elsternwick side in Round 6
- The last wicket heroics of James Loynd and Jordan Graham in our win over Altona, which saw the pair, put on 19 runs to win the game.

Some Individual highlights of note:

- Miles Sellenger's 7 wicket match in Round 1 vs Sunshine (subsequently his first wickets at 2nd XI level).
- James Bartholomeusz's 70 in the same fixture against Sunshine, and 68 against Melton in Round 4.
- Lachlan McCambley's development as a top order batsman highlighted by his 55 against Caulfield.
- Dan Water's 6 wicket haul against Caulfield in Round 2. Unfortunately Dan headed to Japan for work after this game, and was definitely missed.
- Michail Schneider's match winning 63 against Elsternwick. His partnership with Alex Nash of 82 helped steer the OCC to a hard fought win.
- Cameron Perry's with his 5 successive scores of 40+ after the Christmas break.
- Johann Wise with an impressive 58 against Altona, which earnt him a re-call into the 1st XI.
- James Loynd and his reliability with the ball, and his calmness with the bat in clutch situations.
- Harrison King and his continued development as an all-rounder.

2ND X1 REPORT 2015/16 (Continued)

- Scott Gordon and Benjamin Paine, with their continued development with both bat and ball, which was highlighted by both of them beginning the year in the 1st XI.
- The 2nd XI debut's in 2015/16 of Andrew Weymouth, Zac Sleeman, Remi Hudson, Alex Nash, Daniel and Josh Waters, Jordan Graham and Bhanuka Samarrakody.
- Lachlan McCambley, Miles Sellenger and Alex Nash, whom all made their 1st XI debuts after strong performances in the 2nd XI.

Congratulations to the Average Winners in Cameron Perry in the batting (332 runs @ 41.5) and young leggie Miles Sellenger in the bowling (18 wickets @ 15.4).

I would like to personally thank Cameron Perry and Dale Christie who took over the captaincy reigns in my absence and the entire club for their support and well wishes whilst Jacquee and I were on baby duties with Sebastian.

I would like to congratulate James Wild and the 1st XI squad on competing in their 4th successive finals campaign, and James personally on another successful season at The Gunn.

I would again like to thank the countless number of parents who helped out with driving to various grounds around the South and West of Melbourne this season.

I would like to thank Alistair Gordon who again took on the role of 2nd Xi scorer (when Scott was in the 2nd XI), and his outstanding job of entering all scores into My Cricket on Saturday night.

Lastly, I would like to thank the entire 2nd XI squad for this season, hopefully you have learnt a bit more about yourself as a cricketer, and can now see what is required to take the next step both as an individual and as a club.

Let's not have 'What Ifs!'

Sean Clark 2nd XI Captain

THIRD XI REPORT 2015/16

It was a pleasure to captain the Ormond 3rd XI for the 2015/2016 season.

The 3rd XI was by far the most youthful senior team at the club with the majority of players being aged between 14 and 17 years of age.

Some of the team rules we instituted at the start of the season win or lose was to be competitive, disciplined and gentlemanly on the pitch. While being supportive of our team mates and sharing the off pitch workload gaining experience scoring or square leg umpiring.

And during the course of a game every player would have a chance to bat or bowl or both. The team carried it self exceptionally well with umpires praising the behaviour of the team.

The team was for the most part competitive throughout the season recording wins against Noble Park, Caulfield as well as beating eventual finalists Croydon and Box Hill. Some narrow loses meant we did not qualify to make play finals. And the signs are encouraging for this youthful cricketing bunch.

The 3XI team performance was strongest bowling. Finishing equal third in the competition for most wickets. Stand out performances were recorded from youngsters James Van Oosten, Will Robertshaw, James Loynd, Remi Hudson, Bailey Moon, Tom Buchanan and the experienced Russell Oaten.

In fact almost every player could be called upon to confidently bowl in the right areas. A very encouraging future sign for the Ormond cricket club and a credit to the club coaching. Both Vinnie Page and Hugh Hyslop also at various times demonstrated encouraging bowling signs.

Best Performing Bowlers for 3rd XI 2015/2016 season

- James Van Oosten (17 wickets)
- James Loynd (12 wickets)
- Remi Hudson (11 wickets)
- Bailey Moon (10 wickets)
- Russell Oaten (8 wickets)
- Will Robertshaw (7 wickets)
- Tom Buchanan (6 wickets)

Encouraging signs from: Vinnie Page & Hugh Hyslop

The 3rd XI batting performance was overall not as strong as the bowling. Having said that at various times some positive signs and good individual performances started to appear as the year went on.

When available Jonty Sharman Smith, James Loynd, Ross Sandler and Russell Oaten looked impressive at the crease. Youngsters Preston Bodsworth and James Van Oosten continued to improve and look to be excellent long term club batting prospects. Both displaying cool temperaments and solid batting techniques. Remi Hudson and Angus Grey also at various times demonstrated encouraging batting signs.

Best Performing Batsmen for 3rd XI 2015/2016 season

- Jonty Sharman Smith (173 runs with an average of 43)
- Ross Sandler
- James Loynd
- Preston Bodsworth
- James Van Oosten

THIRD XI REPORT 2015/16 (Continued)

Encouraging signs from: Angus Grey & Remi Hudson

On behalf of the 2015/2016 Ormond 3XI I would like to take this opportunity to thank club President Brian Ambler, Club Coach Dale Christie, Ormond Cricket Club committee, Franny Oaten for providing afternoon tea at home games, club umpires Mick Cahalane and Rod Chisholm, Pat Camm, Jason Bodsworth, Anthony Sleeman, John Hyslop, Rod Grey for the support they gave the 3rd XI during the season.

Alex Hill 3rd XI Captain

FOURTH XI REPORT 2015/16

I was delighted when Coach Dale Christie asked me if I would be interested in taking over the 4th XI captaincy for this season. To be competitive in games whilst providing a learning environment for the up and comers and an enjoyable stage for us older guys to play was the goal for us. And although we did not make finals we were definitely competitive in the majority of the games we played. Our mantra was to play hard, have fun, bowl to our fields and bat for 80 overs. The latter letting us down on quite a few occasions.

We had a great mix of juniors and experienced players in our round one win against Noble Park with the highlight being first gamer for the club Dave Broman's "4 for". But close losses were the order of the day for the next couple of rounds with 'reach out and touch it' narrow losses to Caulfield and Croydon.

After losing Sid Ahuja for the season due to family and work commitments we were looking for a replacement opener, and up stepped Tom Karamoshos who made it his own for the rest of the season.

On a couple of occasions our side was not balanced, the one dayer at home to Croydon we had one seamer and the rest spinners, on other occasions we were short on batting stock. This was the story of our season - bowling sides out setting up modest chases only to be bowled out cheaply ourselves. With more of a determined attitude and a "don't leave it to anyone else" our batting could have won us more games, definitely something to work on for next season.

Highlights were Tom Karamoshos maiden half century which brought us close to an upset win against Mt Waverley. Banuka's first and only game in the fourths where he scored a beautiful 50 against Elsternwick. George Harte's 50 and Emile Tate's 50 were also wonderful to watch and the stand of 146 for the 2nd wicket between Banuka and George Harte beat a very old record in the fourths. Russell Oaten's 28 overs against Caulfield and his knock of 61 against Croydon. Liam O'Brien's senior debut at Bayswater taking 3 for 43. Also bowling beyond his years at Endeavour Hills conceding 18 runs off his 8 overs. Andy Watts's composure with the bat in the last over win at Endeavour Hills.

Congratulations to Tom Karamoshos and Hugh Hyslop on winning the batting and bowling awards, many more great seasons to come for these two talented cricketers and fine young men.

I'd like to thank Dale Christie for all his tireless work, Geoff Cowen for his practice captain work, Brian Ambler and committee for delivering a great club to be part of. It has been a pleasure to captain and play alongside all of you this season, and I thank one and all who played in the fourths this season.

Ian Hewett Captain Fourth XI.

FIFTH XI REPORT 2015/16

Season 2015/2016 saw the reintroduction of the 5th XI due to the increasing number of players wanting to play at the club. This was a fantastic move that not only allowed more people the opportunity to participate in local cricket, but further highlighted the continued growth and strength of the Ormond Cricket Club.

The set up of the side was a continuation of the club structure established by coach Dale Christie the previous year. The 5th XI became the new 'Club XI' (the 4th XI held that moniker in 2014/2015) and featured players of all ages and abilities throughout the year. Like the Fourths previous season, the team was more focussed on the social aspect of the sport, and players didn't necessarily have to train every week to earn selection.

The 5th XI comprised an eclectic blend of youth and experience throughout the year, featuring young junior kids playing their first games of senior cricket, wily veterans making long-awaited comebacks and everything in between.

The side competed in the Victorian Turf Cricket Association's (VTCA) South D1 competition, which played exclusively one-day (36 overs per side) matches on Sunday afternoons, further highlighting its social nature.

It was also very pleasing to see the 5th XI become a family affair with fathers returning to local cricket to enjoy a game or two with their boys. The Sharman-Smiths (Rod, Jonty and Fraser), the Gordons (AI, Scott and Aedan) and the McCambleys (Garry and Jack) all played in the same side throughout the year and really epitomised what the Club XI is all about.

On the field it was a season of mixed results. The team started the year in fine style, with a comfortable win over Mentone CC at home. Ormond posted 6/149 from their allotted 36 overs, with James Robertshaw and club debutante George Harte amongst the runs, while four wickets from Sagar Aher helped bowl Mentone out for 128.

Perhaps the year's biggest highlight was the thumping away win over Beaumaris in Round 9. After a great team bowling performance skittled Beauy for just 97, a brilliant 38 from Nick Chapman saw us reach the target with 15 overs to spare.

Unfortunately, the 5ths registered just four wins for the season (excluding Chelsea-Blue's forfeit in Round 2) and finished in sixth place with the constantly-changing line up preventing us from getting any real consistency.

Our batting was perhaps our biggest weakness this year – and this seemed to be an issue not exclusive to the 5th XI. On four occasions we registered scores below 100, which won't win many games. More often than not, too much was left to our bowling group as they were required to defend small targets.

Although our batting needs to improve if the side is to play finals next year, there were certainly standout performances with the willow. James Robertshaw and Anton Ferdinands were regularly amongst the runs, belting 235 runs between them in just 11 combined matches. Angus Grey smashed a fine 50* in Round 8, while Jonty Sharman-Smith played a couple of fine innings.

From a bowling perspective, Sagar Aher was clearly the side's standout performer, claiming 18 scalps at 14.17 in his 11 games. He took 4/28 in the first match of the season, and backed that up with a five-for in our next outing in Round 3. Scott Harty, Joe Keats and Will Hunter also excelled with the ball while Scott Gordon had a lot of nervous batsman shuffling in the crease whenever he rolled his arm over.

Congratulations to James Robertshaw and Sagar on winning the 5th XI batting and bowling awards respectively.

FIFTH XI REPORT 2015/16 (Continued)

From a personal perspective, this was my first time captaining a cricket team. It had its challenges along the way, but it was definitely a most rewarding and enjoyable experience. There were a couple of games that I missed through injury and unavailability, and Jonty and James Robertshaw captained the team in my absences. The pair displayed fine leadership qualities and I thank them for not only stepping up when required, but also for their input and assistance throughout the year.

Finally, I would just like to take this opportunity to thank all of my teammates throughout the year for making season 2015/2016 one of the most enjoyable I've had. The teamwork, fighting spirit, camaraderie and banter not only helped us all through the occasional tough days in the field, but also made the 5th XI a fantastic environment within which to play cricket. It was an absolute pleasure to play alongside you all this season.

A great debut for the 5th XI this season, but let's work towards achieving bigger and better things in 2016-2017!

Will Hunter

Captain 5th XI

FIRST XI RESULTS 2015/16:

Captain: James Wild

Games :	Won	Lost:	Draw:	Position:
14	8	6	0	6th

Batting:	Inns:	Not Out:	Runs:	High Score:	Average:
M Harrison	14	1	466	156	35.85
J Wild	13	0	430	120	33.08

Best Partnerships:	Score	Against	Round
M Harrison/J Wild*	275	v Moorabbin	Round 5
N Schlittler/M Harrison	116	v Caulfield	Round 2

*(1st XI and club record 3rd wicket partnership and VSDCA record 3rd wicket partnership)

Batting Highlights (50 Runs and over):

	Score:	Against:	Round:
M Harrison	156	v Moorabbin	Round 5
J Wild	120	v Moorabbin	Round 5
N Schlittler	96	v Sunshine	Round 1
N Schlittler	87	v Caulfield	Round 2
J Wild	82	v Oakleigh	Quarter Final
J Wild	75	v Sunshine	Round 1
M Harrison	72	v Malvern	Round 12
G Chessari	62	v Williamstown	Round 7
N Schlittler	51	v Brighton	Round 10
N Oaten	50	v Werribee	Round 13

For all other batting statistics, please refer to the club's MyCricket website

Bowling :

	Overs:	Maidens:	Wickets:	Runs:	Average:
J Wild	197	64	38	493	12.97
R Bird	236.3	59	35	553	15.80
N Oaten	95.3	14	18	298	16.56
D Dervan	97.1	22	15	251	16.73

FIRST XI RESULTS 2015/16 (Continued):

Bowling Highlights (4 Wickets and over):

	Score:	Against:	Round:
J Wild	7/38	v Brighton	Round 10
J Wild	5/32	v Altona	Round 9
J Wild	5/71	v Malvern	Round 12
R Bird	4/25	v Melton	Round 4
N Oaten	4/36	v Oakleigh	Round 3
D Dervan	4/41	v Moorabbin	Round 5
R Bird	4/61	v Caulfield	Round 2

SECOND XI RESULTS 2015/16:

Captain: Sean Clark

Games :	Won	Lost:	Draw:	Position:
13	4	9	0	11th

Batting:	Inns:	Not Out:	Runs:	High Score:	Average:
C Perry	10	2	322	63*	41.5
L Mc Cambley	10	0	166	55	16.6

Best Partnerships:	Score:	Against:	Round:
M Schneider/A Nash	75	v Elsternwick	Round 6
S Gordon/H King	73	v Malvern	Round 12

Batting Highlights (50 Runs and over):

	Score:	Against:	Round:
J Bartholomeusz	69	v Sunshine	Round 1
J Bartholomeusz	68	v Melton	Round 4
M Schneider	63	v Elsternwick	Round 6
C Perry	63*	v Yarraville	Round 8
J Wise	58	v Altona	Round 9
D Dervan	58	v Malvern	Round 12
L McCambley	55	v Caulfield	Roudn 2

For all other batting statistics, please refer to the club's MyCricket website

Bowling		Overs:	Maidens:	Wickets:	Runs:	Average:
M Seller	ger	94.5	22	18	277	15.39

Bowling Highlights (4 Wickets and over):

	Score:	Against:	Round:
D Christie	6/24	v Hoppers Crossing	Round 11
D Waters	6/39	v Caulfield	Round 2
S Gordon	4/14	v Werribee	Round 13
M Sellenger	4/18	v Sunshine	Round 1
D Dervan	4/39	v Malvern	Round 12
M Sellenger	4/73	v Moorabbin	Round 5

THIRD XI RESULTS 2015/16:

Captain: Alex Hill

Games :	Won	Lost:	Draw:	Position:
13	4	8	1	10th

Batting:	Inns:	Not Out:	Runs:	High Score:	Average:
J Sharman-Smith	6	2	173	73*	43.25
P Bodsworth	12	1	172	30	15.64

Best Partnerships:	Score	Against	Round
G Chessari/R Hudson	94	v Noble Park	Round 1

Batting Highlights (50 Runs and over):

	Score:	Against:	Round:
G Chessari	73	v Noble Park	Round 1
J Sharman-Smith	73*	v Croydon	Round 4

For all other batting statistics, please refer to the club's MyCricket website

Bowling:	Overs:	Maidens:	Wickets:	Runs:	Average:
J Van Oosten	83.5	20	17	223	13.12

Bowling Highlights (4 Wickets and over):

	Score:	Against:	Round:
J Loynd	6/64	v Malvern	Round 12
R Hudson	5/48	v Elsternwick	Round 6
W Robertshaw	4/14	v Box Hill	Round 9
J Loynd	4/18	v Noble Park	Round 1
J Van Oosten	4/20	v Mount Waverley	Round 13
J Van Oosten	4/23	v Endeavour Hills	Round 11

FOURTH XI RESULTS 2015/16:

Captain: lan Hewett

Games:	Won	Lost:	Draw:	Position:
13	3	8	2	13th

Batting:	Inns:	Not Out:	Runs:	High Score:	Average:
T Karamoshos	13	1	181	58	15.08

Best Partnerships:	Score	Against	Round
B Samarakkody/G Harte	136	v Elsternwick	Round 6
R Oaten/T Karamoshos	80	v Croydon	Round 4

Batting Highlights (50 Runs and over):

	Runs	Against:	Round:
G Harte	76	v Elsternwick	Round 6
B Samarakkody	64	v Elsternwick	Round 6
E Tait	62	v Elsternwick	Round 6
R Oaten	61	v Croydon	Round 4
T Karamoshos	58	v Mount Waverley	Round 13

For all other batting statistics, please refer to the club's MyCricket website

Bowling:	Overs:	Maidens:	Wickets:	Runs:	Average:
H Hyslop	38	9	11	137	12.45

Bowling Highlights (4 Wickets and over):

	Score:	Against:	Round:
H Hyslop	5/22	v Malvern	Round 12
R Oaten	5/65	v Caulfield	Round 2
W Hunter	4/20	v Caulfield	Round 2
D Broman	4/24	v Noble Park	Round 1
M Cousins	4/44	v Moorabbin	Round 5
H Hyslop	4/47	v Mount Waverley	Round 13

FIFTH XI RESULTS 2015/16:

Captain: Will Hunter

Games:	Won	Lost:	Draw:	Position:
14	4	7	3	6th

Batting:	Inns:	Not Out:	Runs:	High Score:	Average:
J Robertshaw	6	1	42	123	24.6
A Ferdinands	5	1	40	112	28

Best Partnerships:	Score	Against	Round
L Dalle Nogare/J Robertshaw	56	v Murrumbeena	Round 10
A Grey/J Sharman-Smith	50	v Old Mentonians	Round 8

Batting Highlights (50 Runs and over):

	Score:	Against:	Round:
A Grey	50	v Old Mentonians	Round 8

For all other batting statistics, please refer to the club's MyCricket website

Bowling:	Overs:	Maidens:	Wickets:	Runs:	Average:
S Aher	66	5	18	255	14.17

Bowling Highlights (4 Wickets and over):

	Score:	Against:	Round:
S Aher	5/40	v Caulfield	Round 3
S Harty	5/41	v Hampton	Round 6
J Sharman-Smith	4/17	v Port Melbourne	Round 4
J Keats	4/27	v Chelsea Blue	Round 12
S Aher	4/28	v Mentone	Round 1
W Hunter	4/29	v South Caulfield	Round 14

CLUB AWARDS 2015/16:

Qualification criteria is as follows:

Batting - 7 innings and 150 runs

Bowling - 66 overs and 15 wickets

No one met the full qualification criteria in 3rd and 5th XI batting and 4th XI bowling, so the award goes to the player who was next best.

1st XI Batting	1	<u>NO</u>	<u>HS</u>	<u>RUNS</u>	<u>AV</u>
Matthew HARRISON	14	1	156	466	35.85
<u>1st XI Bowling</u>	<u>o</u>	<u>M</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>RUNS</u>	AV
James WILD	197	64	38	493	12.97
2nd XI Batting	<u>I</u>	<u>NO</u>	<u>HS</u>	<u>RUNS</u>	<u>AV</u>
Cam PERRY	10	2	63*	332	41.5
2nd XI Bowling	<u>o</u>	M	<u>w</u>	<u>RUNS</u>	AV
Miles SELLENGER	94.5	22	18	277	15.39
3rd XI Batting	l	<u>NO</u>	<u>HS</u>	<u>RUNS</u>	<u>AV</u>
Jonty SHARMAN-SMITH	6	2	73*	173	43.25
3rd XI Bowling	<u>o</u>	<u>M</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>RUNS</u>	<u>AV</u>
<u>3rd XI Bowling</u> James VAN OOSTEN	O 83.5	<u>M</u> 20	<u>w</u> 17	<u>RUNS</u> 223	<u>AV</u> 13.12
-					
James VAN OOSTEN	83.5	20	17	223	13.12
James VAN OOSTEN <u>4th XI Batting</u>	83.5 <u>I</u>	20 <u>NO</u>	17 <u>HS</u>	223 <u>RUNS</u>	13.12 <u>AV</u>
James VAN OOSTEN <u>4th XI Batting</u> Tom KARAMASHOS	83.5 <u>I</u> 13	20 <u>NO</u> 1	17 <u>HS</u> 58	223 <u>RUNS</u> 181	13.12 <u>AV</u> 15.08
James VAN OOSTEN <u>4th XI Batting</u> Tom KARAMASHOS <u>4th XI Bowling</u>	83.5 <u>I</u> 13 <u>O</u>	20 <u>NO</u> 1 <u>M</u>	17 <u>HS</u> 58 <u>W</u>	223 <u>RUNS</u> 181 <u>RUNS</u>	13.12 <u>AV</u> 15.08 <u>AV</u>
James VAN OOSTEN <u>4th XI Batting</u> Tom KARAMASHOS <u>4th XI Bowling</u> Hugh HYSLOP	83.5 <u>I</u> 13 <u>O</u> 38	20 <u>NO</u> 1 <u>M</u> 9	17 <u>HS</u> 58 <u>W</u> 11	223 <u>RUNS</u> 181 <u>RUNS</u> 137	13.12 <u>AV</u> 15.08 <u>AV</u> 12.45
James VAN OOSTEN <u>4th XI Batting</u> Tom KARAMASHOS <u>4th XI Bowling</u> Hugh HYSLOP <u>5th XI Batting</u>	83.5 <u>I</u> 13 <u>O</u> 38 <u>I</u>	20 <u>NO</u> 1 <u>M</u> 9	17 <u>HS</u> 58 <u>W</u> 11 <u>HS</u>	223 <u>RUNS</u> 181 <u>RUNS</u> 137 <u>RUNS</u>	13.12 <u>AV</u> 15.08 <u>AV</u> 12.45 <u>AV</u>

JOHN ROBERTSON CLUB CHAMPION TROPHY 2015–16:

Congratulations to James Wild, on winning the John Robertson Club Champion Trophy for season 2014-15, the third year in a row for James.

James had another exceptional year with both bat and ball, which is reflected in his comfortable winning margin.

Top point scorers for 2015/16 season

	Player	Points
1	James Wild	1042
2	Nick Oaten	600
3	Neil Schlittler,	576
4	Rod Bird	570
5	Matthew Harrison	564
6	Russell Oaten	541
7	Dave Dervan	502
8	James Loynd	432
9	Scott Gordon	413
10	Jonty Sharman-Smith	402

Points Allocation:

Runs	1.00	Catches	5.00
Unassisted Wickets (b, lbw)	15.00	Assisted Wickets	10.00
Unassisted Runouts	5.00	Assisted Runouts	5.00
100s	25.00	50s	10.00
Stumpings	5.00	5 wkts in Innings	25.00
Not outs	0.00		
Weighting Factor in 1st XI & 2nd XI games	1.1	All other games weighting factor	1.0

J.G. CRAIG REPORT 2015/16:

Each year the Victorian Sub-District Cricket Association (VSDCA) runs the J.G. Craig Competition for Under 15 cricket players. It is recognised as the premier Under 15 cricket competition in Victoria and is conducted in January each year.

The competition was known as the R M Hatch Competition for more than 50 years but in 2014/15 it was re-named the J G Craig Competition after Ormond and VSDCA legend, John Craig. John scored more than 7,000 runs in the VSDCA and was part of 6 premierships at Ormond. As such, the club has a special connection with the competition and the club has enjoyed considerable success in the competition over recent years having won in 2007/08, been runner up in 2008/09 and semi- finalists in 2005/2006, 2006/2007 and 2013/14. The club was also quarter-finalists in 2010/2011.

We have historically fielded a team that is a combination of the best current Ormond junior under 15 players together with juniors from other metropolitan clubs in the south eastern suburbs of Melbourne.

This season we put together a strong team after some winter training and an extensive trial period. We also had a practice match against Preston that we won comfortably but unfortunately, like last year, we narrowly lost the first 2 games after being in winning positions. From there we fought back to be in contention but we lost the final qualifying match against Brighton so we narrowly missed progressing through to the quarter finals. It was a disappointing result but plans are in place to make amends in 2017.

The team was led by our captain Campbell Lord with Joel Fernando and Jared Williams also in the leadership group.



Top: Jonty Sharman-Smith (Assistant Coach), Josh Paterson, Brett Poll, Liam O'Neill, Sid Pai, Emile Tait, Alex Riley, Michael Cove (Coach) Front: Marco Walker, Tom Buchanan, Joel Fernando (VC), Campbell Lord (Captain), Jared Williams (VC), Vinnie Page, Aedan Gordon. Absent: Will Robertshaw (Team Manager)

J.G. CRAIG REPORT 2015/16 (CONTINUED)

Here is a summary of results:

Opponent	Scores	W/L	Player Highlights
Moorabbin	115 v 8/116	L	B. Poll 37, E. Tait 25, M. Walker 4/28
Malvern	104 v 6/122	L	J. Fernando 28 V. Page 3/12
Oakleigh	160 v 98	W	J. Williams 58, J. Paterson 29, C. Lord 3/15, T.Buchanan 3/25
Elsternwick	97 v 41	W	C. Lord 20, T.Buchanan 2/4 & 20, M. Walker 18* and 3/6, S. Pai 4/12,
Caulfield	4/128 v 7/32	W	A. Riley 56*, J. Williams 30
Brighton	139 v 7/181	L	J. Paterson 29, B. Poll 27, E. Tait 2/27, M. Walker 2/29

AWARDS

BATTING – Jared Williams 121 runs @ 20.17

BOWLING – Marco Walker 11 wickets @ 10

Special thanks to our assistant coach Jonty Sharman-Smith and our Team Manager Will Robertshaw plus all the parents who supported the boys through the carnival.

MICK COVE

COACH

JUNIOR SECTION REPORT

Overview

It is my pleasure to present the 2015/16 season report for the juniors at Ormond Cricket Club.

I believe we can be very proud of what we have accomplished this season. Strong juniors are the foundation of the club's future and we fielded 9 junior teams which is the largest number of teams in recent years plus we also have healthy T20 Blast and Milo In2 Cricket Programs in place. In addition, we also fielded an Under 15 representative team in the J. G. Craig Competition.

The club aspires to continual improvement and we have grown significantly this season from 74 junior players to 112 registered players. The T20 Program grew from 20 players to 31 Players while our Milo In2Cricket program grew from 40 players to 51 participants

It's been a development year for our large number of under 12 players (50) while at the other end of the juniors, our under 16 teams had an outstanding season. Some of the season highlights included:

- The Under 16A Grade team was undefeated all season until the grand final
- The Under 16B Grade team lost one game all season until the grand final
- Our top under 12 team went back into A grade
- We fielded 4 Under 12 teams, 2 Under 14 teams and 3 Under 16 teams

The performance of our Under 16A and B grade teams was a standout. Collectively they lost one game in total during the home and away season and the performance of the B grade team was extraordinary given they played against the number one teams at 8 other clubs. Unfortunately, both teams finished runners-up but their outstanding record was a result of several year's hard work and some of the initiatives we introduced a few seasons ago including a winter program and one-on-one coaching. The future looks bright for that group with eight of the twelve boys from the U16A grand final team still eligible to play in that grade again next season and they are keen to go one better in 2016/17.

Another on-field highlight was the performance of our Under 12C Grade team that was made up of very talented 9 year-old boys playing their first season of cricket. Traditionally first year junior cricketers play Rookies or D grade but we decided to challenge this group and play in C grade. They came close to playing finals and in most games they played against 10 and 11 year olds. Our 14A grade team struggled early in the season but came home hard and only missed playing finals on percentage. A controversial washout actually cost them a finals berth but their development under a young coach was outstanding.

Despite a late charge from several teams, only the two under 16 teams played finals this season. On face value this might seem slightly disappointing, however, this is not the only 'KPI' that measures team success. Wherever possible, we field teams in A grade and a number of players made dramatic improvement this season and had breakout performances after Christmas. In addition, a number of boys also played above their age bracket which gave them invaluable experience. These boys were challenged and performed incredibly well. One example was 10 year-old Lewis Sellenger who played a number of games in the Under 16C Grade team and picked up several bags of wickets and he won the bowling average for that team.

A number of junior players also played seniors this season. In fact, several juniors played in our senior first XI including 14 year-old Miles Sellenger and 15 year-old Ben Paine. A number of juniors also got a taste of Second X1 cricket which augers well for the future of the club.

JUNIOR SECTION REPORT (Continued)

REPRESENTATIVE CRICKET

We have some very talented junior cricketers at Ormond and our level of representation in SECA teams was very high this season including:

- Under 12 Lewis Sellenger Mitchell Shield Premiers
- Under 12 Charlie Ward Josh Browne Plate Premiers
- Under 14 Spencer Wood Captain Allen Shield Green Semi Finalists
- Under 14 Miles Sellenger Captain South East Breakers Premiers
- Under 14 Zac Sleeman South East Breakers Premiers
- Under 14 Bailey Moon South East Breakers Premiers
- Under 15 Miles Sellenger Victorian Metropolitan Team Runners Up

Under 16 Ben Paine – Captain Beitzel Team

These boys also won association awards:

- Under 12A Charlie Ward Batting Average 180 runs @ 60
- Under 12A Angus McLaughlin Bowling 12 wickets @4.92
- Under 16A Remi Hudson Batting 200 runs @ 100
- Under 16A Sam Mahon Bowling 18 Wickets @10.06.

THANK YOU

I would like to thank all our junior coaches and their team managers for their efforts this season in ensuring that the players were taught the skills of the game and most importantly, the spirit of the game. Our coaching group's key objectives were to develop, teach, improve the knowledge and ensure the players have fun playing the game.

We are a community club run by volunteers and without parents and young senior players stepping into junior coaching roles we simply couldn't function. Special thanks to James Robertshaw, Will Robertshaw and Lachlan McCambley for their involvement this season. Coaching juniors is a challenging but very rewarding experience. It's also been fantastic to have so many new and enthusiastic parents put up their hands to assist in the role of team manager, scorer and umpire. Thank you also to Alistair Gordon and his assistants Aedan Gordon and Kyle Edwards for overseeing the running of our grass roots Milo In2 cricket programme. This is a critical part of our club's junior development.

The support of Omegapharm and the Wood family as major sponsors again allowed us to provide all the junior players with both sublimated training and playing shirts as well as a new training ball. We are indeed grateful for the support of all our club sponsors. The committee has been outstanding in their support of the juniors and we continue to work on delivering the objectives outlined in the club's strategic plan that was released in mid-2015. In particular, the development of the juniors and their integration with the seniors into 'one club'.






JUNIOR SECTION REPORT (Continued)

On a personal level I have enjoyed this season immensely and are extremely grateful to all the people who have volunteered to help me with various duties. People like Mat Wood and club President Brian Ambler have made my job a lot easier this year. Not only that, the committee understand the importance of the juniors and fully support the initiatives outlined in last year's strategic plan. I thank all the committee for their ideas, energy and support.

NEXT SEASON

We need to encourage more parents to step forward as we have challenges on and off the ground. A key objective is to blend the junior parents into our social activities and several mothers have volunteered to join our social committee which is a positive move. We also have to contend with the nets at E. E. Gunn being out of commission due to the railway separation project.

The healthy numbers in both the under 12's and the Milo development programs provide a sense of optimism about what is around the corner but we can't afford to get complacent. For the first time in the club's history we plan to field an Under 18 team on the back of a large number of boys moving from the under 16's and there is a possibility that we could have five under 12 teams in 2016/17. I look forward to the new season and I'm expecting it to be full of challenges, development and triumphs.



Pat Camm Junior Co-ordinator

U16A Team Report

BATTING AWARD	REMI HUDSON (237 runs @ 59.25)
BOWLING AWARD	SAM MAHON (18 wickets @ 10.06)
TEAM MANAGERS AWARD	TOM BUCHANAN

SEASON REPORT

In what can only be described as an outstanding season, the Under 16A team went through the season undefeated until the grand final where they fell 25 runs short of the perfect season. They were the dominant team in the competition and were rarely challenged including a relatively soft win in the semi-final. However, after bowling Elsternwick out for only 112 on the Friday night we had a nightmare session on the Sunday morning with the bat that spoilt an incredible season.

This group were outstanding both on and off the ground. They played the game in great spirit and I sense they will be the nucleus of our first XI senior cricket team in a few years and together they will ensure Ormond has a very successful era in the 2020's. Significantly, eight of the twelve boys who played in the grand final team are eligible to play again next season in the under 16's and they are determined to atone for their defeat.

uth East Cricket Association - SECA Fri 16A													
RANK	ТЕАМ	Р	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGST	POINTS	%
1	Ormond 1	9	0	8	1	0	0	45	1212	74	1078	51	1.8489
2	Elsternwick 1	9	0	6	2	1	0	62	1415	75	855	42	2.0020
3	Dingley 1	9	0	6	1	2	0	56	1518	62	1136	39	1.4794
4	Kingston Heath 1	9	0	4	3	2	0	52	1041	65	849	33	1.5327
5	Brighton 1	9	0	4	3	2	0	48	942	65	875	33	1.4579
6	Cluden 1	9	0	4	2	3	0	72	1169	51	936	30	0.8847
7	Hampton 1	9	0	4	1	4	0	77	1293	64	1065	27	1.0091
8	Beaumaris 1	9	0	2	3	4	0	57	873	57	1126	21	0.7753
9	East Sandringham 1	9	0	2	2	5	0	61	862	51	1111	18	0.6487
10	Elwood 1	9	0	1	3	5	0	66	1128	50	1412	15	0.6052
11	Cheltenham Park 1	9	0	1	2	6	0	59	948	56	1333	12	0.6750
12	Brighton District 1	9	0	0	1	8	0	72	1143	57	1768	3	0.5118

The team was brilliantly led by our captain Jordan Graham who always put team first and he was an inspirational leader. Both Jordy and Remi Hudson as 15 year olds played senior 2nds cricket this year. Sam Mahon (18 wickets) joined the club this season and together with Jordy (16 wickets) and Campbell Lord (10 wickets) spearheaded our pace attack while our 3 pronged spin attack of Miles Sellenger (10 wickets), Ben Paine and Tom Buchanan (10 wickets) also dominated with the ball. Miles and Ben both played First XI seniors this year which highlights the depth of talent in this group.

Emile Tait also joined the club this season and took the new ball at times and he bowled his best spell of the season in the grand final. Brett Poll, another welcome addition to the club in 2015/16, also saved his best for the grand final. Our batting was also very strong led by Remi Hudson (237 runs) who has an incredible work ethic and he was supported by Sam Mahon (121), Alex Riley (119), Emile Tait (107), Ben Paine (189), Bailey Moon (108) and Zac Sleeman (87). Zac was our wicket keeper and clearly the best keeper in the competition.

U16A Team Report (Continued)

I would like to thank Greg Paine for his invaluable support and efficiency as team manager and scorer. In addition, thank you to all the parents for their tremendous support on game days and particularly the parents who have been with me through a 7 year journey coaching this group of boys. Jessie Graham needs a special mention for her outstanding catering!

A final highlight for the season was at the SECA presentation night where two Ormond players took out the association batting and bowling awards, Remi Hudson and Sam Mahon.

A summary of the team's performance during the season is as follows:

1	Ormond 3/76 d Elwood 8/73	W	Mahon 3/11, Graham 2/11, Hudson 23*, Riley 17*
2	Ormond 4/152 d East Sandy	W	Moon 50* & 2/1, Mahon 21* & 2/18, Hudson 20* & 2/14, Graham 2/15
	9/124		
3	Ormond 5/177 d Cluden 135	W	Hudson 51*, Mahon 28 & 3/22, Paine 22,
4	Ormond draw Elsternwick 6/168	W	Graham 3/21 (Washout Day 2)
5	Ormond 7/262 d Dingley 7/213	W	Tait 53*, Hudson 52*, Paine 30, Moon 30, Mahon 2/14, Buchanan 19* & 2/26
6	Ormond 9/93 d Brighton 62	W	Tait 19, Lord 18 & 3/7, Sleeman 16, Buchanan 2/7, Graham 2/18
7	Ormond 103 d Brighton District	W	Buchanan 23*, Sleeman 20, Riley 20, Sellenger 4/16, Mahon 3/7, Lord 2/4
	58		
8	Ormond 6/197 d Chelt. Park	W	Mahon 50*, Riley 29*, Hudson 25, Lord 24, , Paine 20,
	4/128		
9	Ormond 1/152 d Beaumaris 117	W	Riley 36*, Paine 29*, Buchanan 3/20, Graham 2/21
SF	Ormond d Kingston Heath 7/123	W	Mahon 2/10
GF	Ormond 87 L Elsternwick 1 112	L	Poll 22, Tait 3/14, Graham 3/18, Paine 2/12

Pat Camm U16A COACH

U16B Team Report



Cavey, Luis Fennessy, Joel Fernando (c), Angus Grey, Hugh Hyslop, Ryan O'Meara, Vinnie Page, Sid Pai, Zac Raymond

TEAM MEMBERS IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER: TOBY BENDEL, TED BUZZA, ALEX CAMM, WILL

BATTING AWARDRYAN O'MEARA (162 runs @ 40.50)BOWLING AWARDRYAN O'MEARA (11 wickets @7.29)TEAM MANAGERS AWARDLUIS FENNESSY

SEASON REPORT

The club this season was blessed with an abundance of talent in this age group and we fielded a very strong team in B grade where we competed against the number one teams at most other clubs. Without a match-day coach for most of the season the team was led by captain Joel Fernando (with strong support coming from Hugh Hyslop and Angus Grey). Their leadership was extraordinary and they displayed maturity beyond their years.

The team's performances are listed below and they finished on top of the ladder after the home and away season, losing only one game during the regular season. They had a terrific win in the semi-final against Brighton where we defended 126. They lost the grand-final to the number one team at Bentleigh Uniting that included several stars who played in the Bayside Breakers team.

I believe our two best performances were rounds 8 and 9 (when we were striving to make finals) and were drawn to play 2 top 4 teams

Round 8 saw us beat McKinnon 1 (7-126 V 8-71) Round 9 we defeated Brighton Union 1 (10-126 V 10-108)

We batted first in both games and set the opposition attainable targets. On both occasions the boys knuckled down and played tight competitive cricket. These wins were outstanding team efforts and ensured we made finals. In the semi-final we played Brighton (2) and Sid Pai was outstanding with the ball and finished with 5/23 from his 8 overs. Chasing 107 for victory, Vinnie Page showed his class with a decisive and chanceless 46 not out.

In the Grand Final we played Bentleigh Uniting (1) and batting first we made a competitive 127 against some quality bowling. Unfortunately it was not enough and they chased down those runs in the 33rd over. Finishing runners-up was an outstanding achievement and this group really enjoyed playing together. Friendships were forged and most importantly, the group had a lot of fun.

A summary of the team's performance during the season is as follows:

1	W	Ormond 5/140 d Brighton Union 5/108 O'Meara 43* Bendel 2/9
2	W	Ormond 9/188 d Sth Melbourne Districts 8/172 O'Meara 43 Buchanan 2/23, Fennessy 2/19, Mar- tinez 2/24
3	W	Ormond 7/180 d Moorabbin 6/161 Martinez 52* Riley 32* Grey 2/27
4	D	Ormond 0/0 vs Brighton (2) 5/132
5	L	Ormond 145 Lost to Wash Park 8/195 Grey 43, O'Meara 32 & 3/25 Hyslop 2/42
6	W	Ormond 5/154 d Bentleigh Uniting 126 Martinez 35* Page 27 O'Meara 25* & 3/17 Raymond 3/20
7	Wash	Ormond v Bentleigh – wash out
8	W	Ormond 7/126 d McKinnon 71 Moon 34 Hyslop 28 Grey 25 Fennessy 2/4 Raymond 2/12 Page 2/16
9	W	Ormond 126 d Brigton Union 108 Martinez 27 Hyslop 26 & 2/21 Raymond 2/15 Pai 2/21
Se	W	Ormond 5/110 d Brighton (2) 107 Page 46* Pai 5/23 Hyslop 2/12
mi		
GF	L	Ormond 127 v Bentligh Uniting 2/128 Fernando 22 Camm 21 Grey 20* Raymond 16

U14A Team Report

BATTING AWARD - SPENCER WOOD (241 Runs, 3rd Highest Runs H&A SECA U14A, HS 52, Average 60.25)

BOWLING AWARD - LIAM O'BRIEN (11 Wickets, 9th Highest Wickets SECA U14A, Average 13.27 Best 4/8)

TEAM MANAGERS AWARD - KYLE EDWARDS

FIELDING - SPENCER WOOD (Finished with 8 Catches the most in SECA U14A

SEASON REPORT

FINISHED 5TH (5 Wins, 3 Losses and Draw)

Our team members were Will Robertshaw (Coach), Spencer Wood (Captain) Elijah Mills, Jish Kohli, Kyle Edwards, Liam O'Brien, Hamish Reimers, Joel Harty, Connor Doherty, Asher Barolsky, Felix Squire, Maxim Squire, Fraser Sharman Smith and Aryan Shah. A special thanks to Lewis Sellenger, Ben Oaten, Charlie Wood and Mackenzie Bohl who also filled in at various times during the season

With only one member remaining from the previous



year's premiership team and several new players to the club, we were looking forward to seeing how the new look U14A team would perform. After a slow start to the season losing to teams full of SECA and Breakers representative players we started to panic and were shouting to Pat, 'get us out of this grade'. However, with Pat's calming effect and belief in the team we stayed in U14A's and decided to fight it out. Under the guidance of premiership coach Will Robertshaw and captain Spencer Wood the boys really started to gain some momentum.

After losing the first two games to the eventual Grand Finalists, the boys only lost one game out of our final seven games and finished the season just out of the finals by percentage. If it had not been for a controversial weather ruling in a game we were on the brink of winning we would have finished 4th and played finals. To the boys credit, they all managed to have some great laughs each week and really enjoyed playing their cricket. The improvement in the team was clearly visible and the highlight was beating the previously undefeated (and eventual premiers) East Sandringham in the last game of the season.

A special thanks to Pat Camm who mentored our players during the season and super-coach Will who balanced his VCE studies with coaching to get the absolute best out of the group. Also to our President Brian Ambler and all of the parents for making the season very easy.

I would also like to highlight the following boys who played representative cricket through early January 2016.

U14 VMCU ALLEN SHIELD

Spencer Wood was named the team's captain and had a great tournament, making the second highest number of runs (205) in the tournament with an average of 41.00 from 7 matches. His highest score was 60 not out. The team finished on top of the ladder, however, lost the semi final to the eventual winners, Western Region Junior CA.

U16 VMCU KEITH MACKAY

Elijah Mills represented his Maccabi AJAX Cricket Club Under 16 Inner South East. He finished with 61 Runs and took 3 wickets during the carnival.

Mathew Wood Team Manager

U14C Team Report

BATTING AWARD MCKENZIE BOHL (133 RUNS @33.25)

BOWLING AWARD MCKENZIE BOHL (7 WICKETS @ 8.14) **ALEX ELLENBOGEN**

TEAM MANAGERS AWARD

SEASON REPORT

Our record of 2 wins and 5 losses, with 2 draws would normally look like a season where we were outplayed for the most part. However, as is often the case, the statistics only tell a part of the story. Out of our 5 losses, 3 of those games we were right in the contest for the majority of the match and we were unlucky to have 2 games washed out when we were well placed. One of the games, I was even going over my victory speech to the boys, but somehow we managed to lose the game. This just goes to show, that cricket can indeed be a funny game and you need to concentrate and apply yourself for the entire game. This also needs to be replicated on the training track as well. The old adage of you play as you train is an old adage for a reason.

At the start of the season Ben Oaten and Josh Kessell were appointed co-captains and along with Alex Ellenbogen who captained the team in the last match, they did a great job in leading the boys on and off the field. The way the boys conducted themselves during the year was a credit to each of the members of the team.

Our season began with a 1 day game against Elwood with a close loss, which would be the theme for the season. After the game I told the boys that we would treat this as a practice match as it was the first time we had all been together. They were stoked with that. I did have to remind them that the ladder wouldn't reflect this mindset.

Over the course of the year all the boys showed they had the potential to influence a game, but like a lot of cricketers, a lack of application during games cost them the chance to have consistent years. Our two best players for the season were McKenzie Bohl who won both the batting and bowling awards and Danny Feng who was runner-up in the batting and not far behind Macca in the bowling. Listed below are the individual highlights for the boys, which clearly show that on their day, they have the ability to perform and compete.

- Alex 26 vs Elwood Round 9 and 1/7. This game Alex was the captain and lead from the front for the team to record their second win. Alex won the Coaches Award for his enthusiasm for all facets of the game and his demeanor at training and on game day.
- Macca 51* vs East Sandy and 3/16 Rd 4 vs Beaumaris. The game against East Sandy was one of my highlights for the season. Macca and Benno put on 60 odd for the last wicket to get us within a whisker of victory. The way their teammates celebrated this great effort, you would have thought that we had won.
- Danny 34 vs South Melb Rd 6 and 3/7 vs Elwood Rd 9 Danny has the potential to be anything he wants to at cricket. He enjoys his teammates doing well as much as anybody.
- Sam 21 vs McKinnon Rd 4 and 1/13 Rd 8 vs Elsternwick. Sam's innings of 17 and partnership of 30 with Elliot Bohl against Elwood in the last round, put us in the position to defend our total and win.
- Ben 28* vs East Sandy and 3/17 Rd 4 vs Beaumaris. Benno's 6 to get us within victory against East Sandy was great, although he still blames the Umpire for giving him the wrong information about how many overs were to go.
- Liam 32* vs Brighton Rd 2 and 1/0. Liam was our wicket-keeper for the majority of the season and did a great job keeping the byes to a minimum from some wayward bowling. His clean striking with the bat was something to see.
- Josh 22* vs McKinnon R4 and 2/8 Rd 3 vs Beaumaris. Josh was runner-up in the bowling average and could probably have won if he hadn't been our reserve wicketkeeper and the coach had of bowled him more often.
- Harry 16 vs Beaumaris R3 and 1/6 vs Elwood Rd 9. Harry's bowling came along in leaps and bounds during the year developing into a dangerous leg-spinner.
- Nik 21 vs East Sandy Rd5 and 2/19 vs Elsternwick Rd 8. Nik's 21 against East Sandy showed what he can do when he puts his mind to it. This innings he steadied the ship and was one of the reasons that we got close to pulling off a miraculous win.
- Khanish 16* vs Brighton Rd 2 and 3/3. Had a great game against Brighton with both bat and ball where he showed the talent that he has. The highlight was scoring runs on the leg-side after being told that he would be retired if he let another ball go down the leg-side.
- Spencer 8 vs South Melbourne Rd 6 and 2/5 vs Beaumaris Rd 3. Spencer had the happy knack of getting wickets bowled when he put them on the stumps and his fielding improved as the season went on.
- Dylan 17 vs South Melbourne Rd 6 and 1/11 vs Elwood Rd 9. Dylan's top score of 17 came after a run of low scores. To see his smile from ear to ear and his teammate's reaction after his innings was another of my highlights for the year.

Thanks to the boys from the U12s who filled in on occasions including Charlie Ward, Lewis Sellenger and Elliot Bohl. Also thanks to Paul Martin and Franny Oaten for their help in ground set-up and all the parents for scoring and afternoon teas. I hope that the boys enjoyed their season with the U14C's and that they have learnt some things for the future. My philosophy for Junior cricketer's is that it is all practice for the future and that you don't have to be the best, as long as you try your best.

RUSSELL OATEN-COACH

U16C Team Report

BOWLING AWARD LEWIS SELLENGER (6 wickets @ 14)

TEAM MANAGERS AWARD ZAC POWELL

SEASON REPORT

In what can only be described as a difficult season, the Under 16C grade team was made up of a combination of first and second year under 16 players, plus due to injuries and late withdrawals, we also had to top up with Under 12 players.

From the outset we knew it was going to be challenging but to the groups credit they worked hard for each other. In fact, they were in most games and lost a number of tight games by small margins.

The team was led by our captain Liam Jenkins who scored the most runs (129) and he was well supported by Michael Collier (113) and Aedan Gordon (89) including a brilliant half century. Damon Whiting (59) and Dean Metter (60) also made valuable contributions with the bat. In the bowling department, Damon Whiting spearheaded the attack with 10 wickets while Cory Schwartz took 7 and Michael Collier took 6. One of the great stories of the season was the fact that a 10 year-old boy filled in for the team and he ended up winning the bowling average. Lewis Sellenger took 6 wickets in his 23 overs including the brilliant figures of 4/13 against Kingston Heath. The other under 12 boys who filled in during the year also did a great job including Angus McLaughlin, Ollie Corbett and Michael O'Donnell.

Special thanks to Elise Collier for her coaching again this season and Peter Collier who was the Team Manager.

A summary of the team's performance during the season is as follows:

1	Ormond 6/91 v Hampton Utd 5/153	L	Collier 2/29 Whiting 28 Jenkins 15
2	Ormond 86 v Kingston Heath (2) 80	W	L Sellenger 4/13 Metter 17 Collier 12 Gordon 11
3	Ormond 144 v Dingley (2) 5/230	L	Whiting 17 Collier 13* Camm 12 Gordon 11 Calabrese 2/11
4	Ormond 3/77 v Parkdale (1) 7/145	D	Pai 2/13 Whiting 2/18 Jenkins 32 Pai 13 Collier 12 (Washout)
5	Ormond 9/158 v St Brigids/St Louis 9/163	L	Jenkins 29 Fennessy 28* & 4/17 Powell 22 Metter 17 Gordon 2/19
6	Ormond 2/124 v Cheltenham Park 5/133	L	Jenkins 29* Collier 26* Calabrese 17 Metter 16* Schwartz 13 & 4/15 Whiting 15
7	Ormond 8/75 v Beaumaris (2) 92	L	Whiting 15 & 4/9 Mahon 12 Schwartz 13 Collier 12* Oaten 3/17
8	Ormond 8/91 v Dingley (2) 9/216	L	Whiting 2/28 Collier 2/23 and 25* Jenkins 16* L Sellenger 12*
9	Ormond 5/139 v Hampton United 145	L	Calabrese 2/13 O'Donnell 2/9 Corbett 2/7 Gordon 52* Whiting 19 Shah 10

PAT CAMM - JUNIOR CO-ORDINATOR

U12A Team Report

BATTING AWARD CHARLIE WARD (180 runs @ 60.00)

BOWLING AWARD ANGUS MCLAUGHLIN (12 wickets @4.92)

TEAM MANAGERS AWARD OLLIE CORBETT

In what can only be described as a formative season, the Under 12A team developed well across the season.

After a relatively poor start we finished 9th on the table, with a win loss ratio of 3 to 5. It should be noted that none of the 13 boys in the squad had played at A Grade level prior to this season and the team also included two boys playing competition cricket for the first time in 2015/16.

Apart from the first two matches we were competitive in nearly every innings and match. The entire team will derive an enormous amount of benefit from the experience with some boys still eligible for another season in Under 12's while the majority move up into the Under 14's.

Tellingly the top three batsman scored over half the teams runs, with the top three bowlers taking over half the teams wickets.

Charlie Ward impressed as Captain, had a standout season with bat and was third highest wicket taker. Lewis Sellenger, second highest run scorer plus wicket taker had a brilliant season. Angus McLaughlin had a strong consistent season with his bowling, and as the season went on played an increasingly important role with his middle order batting.

Ollie Corbett and Michael O'Donnell continue to improve as all-rounders while Bharath Balakrishnan was more than solid as our wicket keeper. Ollie's commitment at both training and on match day saw him a very worthy winner of the Team Managers Award.

At various stages during the year several boys were called on to play in the Under 16C Grade team which seemed daunting, however, this proved most beneficial for their skill development and confidence.

A final highlight for the season was to see two Ormond players take out the SECA U12A's Batting & Bowling awards, Charlie Ward and Angus McLaughlin respectively. A summary of the team's performance during the season is as follows:

Round	Opponent	W/L	Scores	Performance
1	Brighton	L	2/156 v 8/85	C Ward 10*, O Corbett 11*, E Bohl 11*
2	East Sandringham	L	6/198 v	L Sellenger 22*, C Ward 18, A McLaughlin 10*
			9/91	L Sellenger 1 / 12
3	Cheltenham 1	W	4/85 v 44	C Ward 10*, R Doherty 10*
				O Corbett 3/2 A McLaughlin 2/6
4	St Brigid's/St Louis	L	9/148 v	C Ward 26*, A McLaughlin 15*, L Sellenger 14*
			8/108	A McLaughlin 2/6 C Ward 2/19 L Sellenger 1/8
5	Beaumaris	L	8/116 v 101	E Bohl 12 , L Sellenger 10*
				L Sellenger 1/0 (off 6 overs) A McLaughlin 2/2
6	West Bentleigh	D		Match drawn due to heat
7	Mordialloc	W	7/128 v 108	C Ward 28* L Sellenger 27* A Meek 20
				C Ward 2/9 J Mackay 2/4
8	McKinnon 1	L	147 vs 9/120	C Ward 30*, L Sellenger 18
				A Meek 3/20 A McLaughlin 2/11
9	Brighton 1	W	140 v 111	M O'Donnell 29 C Ward 29* E Bohl 20
				A McLaughlin 3/11 O Corbett 2/10

Scott McLaughlin (Coach) & Tanja Curtis (Team Manager)

U12B Team Report

BATTING AWARD	SAM ENEVER (81 runs at 20.25)	
Bowling Award	LACHLAN BERRYMAN (6 wickets at 18.17)	
TEAM MANAGERS AWARD	HUGO THOMAS (all round performances 70 runs, 2 wickets &	Wicket Keeper).

SEASON REPORT

The 12B team members were Lachlan Berryman, Sam Potter, Charlie De'Ath, Digby Bloom, Sam Enever, Tom O'Brien, Jonah Zitzen, Tom Tuke, Tom Potter, Fletcher Beissel, Seb Dommisse, Josh Vine, Oscar Whitney, Hugo Thomas.

The team had a terrific season and their development under our two young coaches was just fantastic to watch. The coaching plan was to teach basic cricketing skills, promote inclusion and sportsmanship, instill a love of the game, have fun and hopefully win!

The boys demonstrated tremendous enthusiasm and there were certainly a number of outstanding individual performances. Extras made up a sizable chunk of our oppositions score each week and our batting on the whole was probably described as tentative but the improvement in the back half of the season was really positive.

Statistically it was a very even contribution from all players. Charlie De'Ath, Sam Enever, Tom Tuke and Seb Dommisse all performed well with the bat while the bowling was also very even with Lachlan Berryman, Sam Potter, Charlie De'Ath and Digby Bloom returning the best figures.

A summary of the team's performance during the season is as follows:

Rd	Opponent		Scores	Performances
1	East Sandringham	L	9/116 v 8/147	L Berryman 20*,S Enever 9*,J Zitzen 2/4
2	Bon Beach	D	5/155 v 7/155	T Tuke 27, H Thomas 22, S Potter 2/15
3	Cheltenham Park	L	5/87 v 3/121	C DeAth 14* T Tuke 10, T O'Brien 2/15
4	Parkdale	L	9/99 v 9/152	J Zitzen 15, S Enever 12, T Potter 1/5
5	Beaumaris	L	9/149 v 9/219	S Dommisse 24, C DeAth 22*, H Thomas 2/4
6	Aspendale	L	9/67 v 3/155	J Vine 9, T Tuke 9, T O'Brien 1/7
7	Le Page	L	8/96 v 7/209	S Potter 16*, L Berryman 14, T Potter 2/10
8	Chelsea	W	9/90 v 5/132	C DeAth 15, H Thomas 12, C DeAth 2/7
9	East Sandringham	L	9/132 v 7/208	J Zitzen 19*, J Vine 18, L Berryman 2/12

Thank you to James Robertshaw and Lachie McCambley who coached the team and provided great leadership, juggling their own senior cricket interests and expectations. A special thanks to all the parents for their selfless assistance in setting up the oval, scoring and morning teas.

JUSTIN DOMMISSE AND PAUL VINE

U12B TEAM MANAGERS

U12C Team Report

BATTING AWARDSENIN SEYMOUR (107 runs @ 107)BOWLING AWARDNOAH MILLER (21 overs 4 wickets @ 7.75)

TEAM MANAGERS AWARD

SEASON REPORT

The Under 12C grade team had a great season and for most players, it was their first season playing red ball cricket. The team competed against opposition sides that were made up of predominately second and third year cricketers.

The improvement of the team each week was very consistent with players learning to value their wicket, the need to bowl straight and the importance of holding catches. The development from a team playing their first match and having to be told where to field to our last match where we bowled the third placed team out in under 20 overs (including 6 catches) was simply stunning. It was a credit to all the boys who strived to improve and came to training with their 'game face' on.

The boys also committed to batting their allocated overs each game and their cricket maturity was beyond their years.

The bowling was led by Jack Kalafatakis (9 wickets), Senin Seymour (7), Sam Pai (6), Charlie Wood and Roch Dargan both with 5

The batting was led by Senin Seymour (107) runs, Sam Pai with 71 runs and Charlie Wood and Noah Miller with 50 runs each.

I think the main thing the team learnt in the season is that each team will have its better players. But each player shouldn't compare themselves to others, but to set individual goals, to bowl one less wide, to make that extra run, hold catches and field well to put pressure on the opposition. Most importantly, have belief in themselves. It was a pleasure to be involved with a group of boys who strived and pushed to improve every week.

A summary of the team's performance during the season is as follows:

Rd	Opponent		Scores	Performances
1	East Sandringham	L	9/116 v 8/147	L Berryman 20*,S Enever 9*,J Zitzen 2/4
2	Bon Beach	D	5/155 v 7/155	T Tuke 27, H Thomas 22, S Potter 2/15
3	Cheltenham Park	L	5/87 v 3/121	C DeAth 14* T Tuke 10, T O'Brien 2/15
4	Parkdale	L	9/99 v 9/152	J Zitzen 15, S Enever 12, T Potter 1/5
5	Beaumaris	L	9/149 v 9/219	S Dommisse 24, C DeAth 22*, H Thomas 2/4
6	Aspendale	L	9/67 v 3/155	J Vine 9, T Tuke 9, T O'Brien 1/7
7	Le Page	L	8/96 v 7/209	S Potter 16*, L Berryman 14, T Potter 2/10
8	Chelsea	W	9/90 v 5/132	C DeAth 15, H Thomas 12, C DeAth 2/7
9	East Sandringham	L	9/132 v 7/208	J Zitzen 19*, J Vine 18, L Berryman 2/12

DARREN SEYMOUR

COACH

U12 Rookies Team Report

BATTING AWARD	HARRY BRADY (46 runs at 11.5 average)
BOWLING AWARD	AIDAN JOBLING (8 wickets)
COACH'S AWARD	LIOR NORISKIN

SEASON REPORT

During the course of the 2015/16 season 14 boys played in the Ormond U12 Rookies team: Will Kelly, Campbell Henderson, Aidan Jobling, Lucas Ebbs, Lucas Nenke, Kieran Wall, Lachlan Rosenberger, Matthew Georgiades, Ethan Jones, Aidan Abidi, Lior Noriskin, Alex Veralas, Harry Brady and Jimmy Feng.

In consultation with Pat Camm and C Grade coach Darren Seymour, it was decided to elevate two boys to C Grade (Lucas Ebbs and Alex Veralas), with two boys coming back into the Rookies team (Harry Brady and Jimmy Feng). Will Kelly also had an opportunity to play a game with the C Grade team.

The Rookies team was predominantly made up of boys aged 9 to 10 years of age and was a mixture of boys that had progressed through Milo Cricket/T20 Blast and others that were being introduced to cricket for the first time. Consequently there was a large variation in skills, which gradually diminished as the season progressed but nonetheless had a significant impact on the performance of the team because of the format of the Rookies competition.

The grounds played on were in mixed condition but our home ground next to Monash University was in excellent condition and is the perfect size for Rookies cricket.

The Rookies team won just the one game but was generally competitive. Depth was the main factor effecting performance, with a number of boys being very inexperienced. There were big improvements in batting, bowling and fielding over the course of the season, which will hold the boys in good stead as they move into a new season. Six to seven of the boys are ready to play U12C next season. Others will benefit from an additional year at Rookies level.

Our main focus during the course of the year was to build skills and make cricket enjoyable. As everyone knows it is a lot easier to enjoy cricket when you are making runs and taking wickets, so enthusiasm did wane for some players over the course of the season.

The Rookies format works well for fledgling players, as it ensures everyone gets a chance to make runs and take wickets. It's pretty clear however, that two or three players would have benefitted from a season in T20 Blast. Perhaps for the coming season there should be some consideration given to encouraging very inexperienced boys into the T20 Blast team as a pathway to Rookies cricket.

A special mention is due to Mark Brady, who effectively acted as assistant coach during the course of the season and Pat Camm who was a great support to the U12 program. Other parents were very helpful during the course of the season, most notably Phil Wall.

SHANE KELLY - COACH

"In2Cricket" and T20 BLAST JUNIOR CRICKET PROGRAM 2015-16

Ormond CC ran Milo In2Cricket again for season 2015/16. In addition to this we also ran 4 teams in the second year of the SE Bayside T20 Blast competition. All groups worked well, with summaries for each as follows:

In2Cricket

- The season was run through 10 dry Saturday morning sessions out of a possible 12.
- The sessions were planned by Alistair Gordon, ably assisted by Aedan Gordon and Kyle Edwards.
- There were six sessions scheduled prior to Christmas and six after.
- There was a total of 51 registered In2Cricket Participants
- There was good attendance at each session.
- The existing equipment was sufficient, however, we did replace some bats and bought more balls to cater for the expanding numbers.
- As per last season there were a lot of younger age children who needed to be taught the basics. The older kids were able to play pairs cricket in the middle of the oval.
- Big thanks to Kyle and Aedan for assisting with the older age group. This was invaluable and enabled me to spend more time with the younger group.
- The sessions typically consisted of a warm-up, cricket drills followed by games either pairs or diamond cricket.
- There were also a number of parents that gladly volunteered week in week out.
- It is my contention that running the Milo In2Cricket sessions on a Saturday morning works well.

T20Blast

- Last season there were thirty one T20Blast players registered.
- Numbers were very encouraging this year with a lot of players looking to play under age junior cricket next season (or electing to stay back in Milo cricket.)
- Cricket Victoria ran these sessions at Koornang Park, which was divided up into 7 grounds.
- The sessions were held on a Saturday morning, and the games are based on Kanga Cricket, or Pairs Cricket.
- The players had training sessions on a Thursday evening throughout the season.
- Some basic skills were required; however the children learned game sense during these matches.
- There were no winners and losers and no ladder.
- The sessions were conducted professionally by CV, and the kids had a lot of fun playing. Initiatives such as naming each playing area after major cricketing ovals worked very well.
- Big thanks to Michael Whitney for co-ordinating and providing coaching for the program. Also thanks to the other parents for helping out.

Once again thanks to Al, Aedan, Kyle and all the parent volunteers.

PAT CAMM

JUNIOR COORDINATOR





Thanks Also To ...

VICTORIAN SUB-DISTRICT CRICKET ASSOCIATION

We congratulate Chairman Jack Sheehan, Secretary Ken Hilton and all of the VSDCA Executive for their excellent management of the Association.

Secretary Mathew Cousins and Executive Committee member Sean Clark represented the Ormond Cricket Club as VSDCA delegates for season 2015/2016.

SOUTH EAST CRICKET ASSOCIATION

We congratulate the President and Executive on the running of the Association, especially Junior Section Manager, Phil Arnold. Thanks also to our delegate, Pat Camm, for representing the Ormond Cricket Club.

CITY OF GLEN EIRA

The service provided by Council during the year is greatly appreciated. We would like to thank Linda Smith, Belinda Griffiths and all the Parks and Recreation staff for their assistance in managing the facilities at the E.E. Gunn Reserve.

EQUIPMENT AND GROUND MANAGEMENT

John Craig carried out the organisation of ground management with Pat Camm assisting with looking after equipment for the juniors and Ross Singleton assisting with looking after clothing apparel for the seniors

AUDITORS

Special thanks to Rob Everett for continuing to audit the Club's books and his general contribution in assisting the Club on financial matters.





TREASURER'S REPORT 2015/16

Following a profit of \$4,543 in the prior, premiership winning, year, the season 2015/16 can be considered a success from a financial perspective for the Ormond Cricket Club, reporting a profit of \$7,159 for the year.

It should be noted that both the current year and prior year profits include a non-cash write-down in the value of equipment on hand of \$2,356 and \$1,833 respectively.

After identifying a need to increase its fundraising efforts if it was to return to a profitable or break-even position, total income has increased from \$81,461 to \$85650. This was predominantly due to increases in subscriptions received from players along with substantially greater returns from sponsorship and donations, offset by a reduction in social income. This reduction in social income can be attributed to the fact that the Club did not host any finals this season.

As mentioned in the prior year report, Cricket Victoria has made a decision to phase out its financial support of Sub-District clubs via its annual dividend. For the time being this dividend will be \$9,000, however it is not known how long it will continue for.

Overall, cricket club expenditure was increased in season 2015/16 by \$1,573, predominantly due to increases in honoraria, advertising and marketing (servicing new sponsors) and affiliation fees (addition of 5th XI), offset by a reduction in expenditure on merchandise.

Ormond Cricket Club enjoys a strong ongoing relationship with its sponsors, and the financial contributions of Omegapharm, Buxton Real Estate, Hewett Racking Systems, Remezzo, PJ Camm & Associates, Australian Urology Associates, The Door Store, The McKinnon Hotel and The Servery deserve to be highlighted. The Club also wishes to thank the players who made the extra effort to obtain individual sponsors this season. Furthermore, the Club would like to note the strong relationship it has built with the local Ormond/McKinnon branch of the Bendigo Community Bank, for which it is an investor. This ownership interest has already paid off via the sponsorship funds which have been received since the relationship commenced.

I would like to acknowledge the support of John Craig and Mathew Cousins in administering the Club's financial matters.

The Ormond Cricket Club is in a strong financial position following two profitable seasons, however further hard work and financial discipline is required if the Club is to be successful on and off the field.

Liam Mulcahy

TREASURER



ORMOND CRICKET CLUB

Statement of Income and Expenditure Period 1/6/15 to 31/05/16

INCOME

INCOME			2015/16	2014/15
	MEMBERSHIP			
		Subs - Senior	11,345	10,280
		Subs - Junior	17,988	13,842
			29,333	24,122
	VSDCA GRANT		9,000	9,000
	CRAIG PROGRA	M	1,375	1,625
	SOCIAL AND FU	NDRAISING	13,040	20,135
	SPONSORSHIP	AND DONA-	27,292	19,173
			50,707	49,933
	OTHER INCOME			
		Interest	-	391
		Prizemoney	1,000	2,250
		Sale of Mer-	4,610	4,765
			5,610	7,406
TOTAL INCOME			85,650	81,461
EXPENDITURE				
	ADMINISTRATIO			
		Bank Charges	42	58
		Postage and	332	312
			374	370
	CRICKET EXPEN			
		Advertising and Marketing	2,682	612
		Afternoon Tea	2,104	1,885
		Affiliation	2,860	1,730
		Equipment	6,789	7,779
		Fines	-	190
		Ground and	8,949	8,112
		Honoraria	31,577	28,400
		Insurance	245	245
		Pavilion		
		Cleaning and Maintenance	1,430	1,270
		Training	1,579	578
		Trophies	1,829	2,815
		Utility Costs	3,929	3,477
			63,973	57,094
	OTHER EXPENS	ES		
		Merchandise	10,018	16,632
		Write down	,	· · · · · · ·
		value of	2,356	1,833
		Equipment Miscellaneous	1,771	989
			14,145	19,454
				;
TOTAL EXPENSE	S		78,491	76,918
PROFIT/ (LOSS)			7,159	4,543
F KOFII/ (LU33)			7,100	7,040

ORMOND CRICKET CLUB

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MAY 2016

		2015/16	2014/15
ASSETS			
	CURRENT ASSETS Cash	24.279	17 106
	Prepayments	24,278 1,658	17,106
	Receivables	1,000	- 238
	TOTAL CURRENT	25,936	17,344
	NON-CURRENT AS-		
	Investment in Bendigo	2,500	2,500
	Equipment	7,035	6,778
	TOTAL NON		
TOTAL NON-		9,535	9,278
TOTAL ASSETS		35,471	26,622
LIABILITIES			
	CURRENT LIABILI-		
	Creditors	2,500	810
	TOTAL CURRENT	2,500	810
TOTAL LIABILITIES		2,500	810
NET ASSETS		32,971	25,812
MEMBERS FUN	NDS		
	Retained Earnings	25,812	21,269
	Current Year Earnings	7,159	4,543
TOTAL MEMBERS FUNDS		32,971	25,812

AUDIT REPORT TO MEMBERS

I have audited the financial records and statements of the Ormond Cricket Club Inc. for the period ended 31 May, 2016. It was not possible for me to verify all income from social/fund raising activities conducted by the Club.

In my opinion the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Club as at 31 May 2016, and the result of its operations for that period.

Rob Everett HONORARY AUDITOR

